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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA and NEW YORK
STATE ex rel. MARK A. FAVORS, |

16 Civ. 4647 (LTS) |
Plaintiff,

v.

QIN MEDICAL P.C. and DR. FENG QIN, M.D.,
|

Defendants. |

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
COMPLAINT-IN-

Plaintiff-Intervenor, INTERVENTION OF THE
UNITED STATES OF

v. AMERICA |

QIN MEDICAL P.C. and DR. FENG QIN, M.D., |

Defendants. |

1. The United Statesof America (the “United States” or “Government™), by its |
|

attomey, Geoffrey S. Berman, United States Attomey for the Southern District ofNew York, |

having fled a notice of intervention against defendants Qin Medical P.C. (“Qin Medical") and |

Dr. Feng Qin M.D. (“Dr. Qin,” and together, the “Qin Defendants”) pursuant to 31 US.C. |

§3730()(4), alleges for its complaint-in-intervention as follows: |



PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2. “Thisisa civil fraud suit brought by the United States against the Qin Defendants

under the False Claims Act, 31 US.C. § 3729 et seg. (“FCA™), o recover damages sustained by, |

and penalties owed to the United Statesa the resultof the Qin Defendants” having submitted |

ecm eo
3. Dr. Qin owns and operates Qin Medical,a solo medical practice in Lower

Manhattan. The practice provides vascular surgery services primarilyto patients with end-stage

renal disease (“ESRD”) who receive hemodialysis. Twoofthe most common procedures. |

performed at Qin Medical were fistulagrams (a radiological procedure in which dye is injected |

into the patient's vein or artery to visualize it) and percutaneous transluminal angioplasics in |

which wires and balloons are inserted into veins or arteries that have narrowed in order to restore |

the blood flow). These patients were all enrolled in Medicare, |

4. Pursuant to applicable guidelines at the relevant times, Medicare will reimburse a |

provider for vascular access evaluation and maintenance procedures on ESRD patients, including.

fstulagrams and angioplastis, only when the patients have had certain “diagnostically specific

and appropriate indications” demonstrating the medical necessity for such procedures.

Morsover, angioplasties ar reimbursed only when “there is documentation supporting the |

presenceofresidual, hemodynamically significant stenosis [blood vessel blockage], generally

>/50 percentofthe vessel diameter.” |

5. The United States previously filed a complaint against Dr. Qin in 2015 alleging |

that from December 2010 through April 2012, while with a previous employer, he provided

vascular surgery services (fistulagrams and angioplastcs) to ESRD patients in manner that |

violated applicable Medicare ules. The United States and Dr. Qin entered into a Stipulation and |
|
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Order ofSettlement and Dismissal resolving that case in which Dr. Qin adited that, during the

relevant time period, he had provided the vascular surgery services at issuc to ESRD patients

where the patients did not present with clinical reasons for the interventions. He paid $150,000

as partofthe settlementofthat case.

6. As explained below, soon afer the timeframe at issue inthis settlement, Dr. Qin

opened his own medical practice, Qin Medical, and continued to bill Medicare for procedures

that were not reasonable and necessary. Specifically, in 2015 and 2016, Dr. Qin routinely

performed fistulagrams and angioplastics on ESRD patients who did not have the requisite |

“diagnostically specific and appropriate indications” and whose blood vessels did not have

“hemodynamically significant stenosis.” Qin Medical then submitted claims to Medicare for

those unjustified and non-reimbursable fstulagrams and angioplastes in violationofthe FCA. |

‘Through this action, the Government secks to recover damags and civil penalties under the FCA |

arising from those false claims. |

JURISDICTION AND VENUE |

7. This Court has jurisdiction over the claim in this action pursuant to 31 U.S.C.

§3730(a) and 28 U.S.C §§ 1331 and 1345.

8. Venue lies in this District pursuant 0 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) because the

principal location of Qin Medical is located in this District and mostofthe medical procedures at

issue took place at this location.

PARTIES

9. Plainiffis the United StatesofAmerica on behalfofits agency the United States

Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). The United States filed its notice of partial |

intervention inthis action on July 9, 2018, |
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10. Qin Medical is a professional corporationwith a principal location at 123

Lafayette Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10013, and an additional location at 327 Beach 19th |

Street, Suite 9, Far Rockaway, NY 11691. Its owned and operated by Dr. Qin, who is the only |

vascular surgeon who practices there. It was approved to bill to Medicare on June 22, 2011.

11. Dr. Qin is a vascular surgeon who owns and operates Qin Medical, and sees |

patients at its locations.

FACTS

I. Applicable Statutory and Regulatory Scheme |

A ThMeir Program an Corre or SRD aes |
12. Pursuant to Title XVIIIofthe Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1395etseq., the

federal Medicare Program was established in 1965 to provide health insurance for elderly and

disabled persons. Tn 1972, Congress expanded Medicare to provide insurance coverage for

patients with ESRD, regardlessoftheir age. See Pub. L. No. 92-603, § 2991, 86 Stat. 1329, 1463 |

(1972) (codified at 42 U.S.C. § 13950).

13. Asa general matter, Medicare does not offer coverage for “[e]xaminations

performed for a purpose other than treatment or diagnosis of a specific illness, symptoms, |

complaint, or injury,” with limited specified exceptions not applicable here. 42 CF.R.

S41LIS@). |

14. Foran ESRD beneficiary, renal hemodialysis services fumished in or under the

supervisionofan ESRD facility are paid under the Medicare Part B benefit through a bundled

rate that comprises routine maintenance dialysis treatment, including drugs, laboratory tests,

equipment, and staff time, as well as monitoringofthe patient's vascular access. See 42 U.S.C.

§ 1395m(b)(14); 42 C.E.R. part 413, subpart H; Medicare Claims Processing Manual 100-04, ch |
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8,10. Dislysis-related physician's services for ESRD bencficiaics ar separately paid under

Part B through a monthly capitation payment to a designated physician (generally a nephrologist) |

who is responsible for supervising patients with renal failure, by, among other things, assessing |

the adequacy ofdialysis and managing other conditions secondary to ESRD. See 42 US.C.

§ 1395m(b)(3): 42 C.E.R. § 414.314(a); Medicare Claims Processing Manual 100-04, ch. §,

§ 140A). Outpatient procedures necessary to maintain a patient's vascular access but not

directly related to dialysis, including surgical procedures such as fistulagrams and angioplastes

performed at clinics such as Qin Medical, are paid separately under Part B on a fee-for-service |

basis. See generally 42 USC.§ 1395rm(@); 42 C.F.R. § 414.314(b): Medicare Claims Processing |

Manual 100-04, ch. 8, § 140(B).

15. Under the Medicare statute, “[nlotwithstanding any other provisionofthis |

subchapter, no paymentmaybe made under [Medicare] part A or partB for any expenses |

incurred for tens or services... which are ot reasonable and necessaryfo the prevention of |

illness: 42 U.S.C. § 1395y(a)(1)(B) (emphasis added),

16. In submittinga Medicare reimbursement form, a healthcare provider implicitly

certifies compliance with § 1395y(a)(1)(B). |

17. Deciding what is “reasonable and necessary” under § 1395y(a)(1)(B) is delegated |

inthe first instance to HHS, and the agency may decide whether or no fo reimburse for certain |

typesof treatments by promulgating national coverage determinations. HHS coniracts with |

Medicare Part B carriers to provide coverage for out-of-hospital medical services, and such |

carriers may create guidelines or policies, such as Local Coverage Determinations and Medical

Policy Articles, in the absenceof oras an adjunct to a national policy. |
|
|
|
|
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18. Providers billing Medicare must first complete and sign a Medicare Enrollment

Application. These agreements provide as follows: |

Tagree to abide by the Medicare laws, regulations and program instructions that
apply to me or to [my medical practice]. The Medicare laws, regulations, and |
‘program instructions are available through the fee-for-service contractor. I |
understand that payment ofa claim by Medicare is conditioned upon the claim |
and the underlying transaction complying with such laws, regulations, and |
program instructions (including, but not limited to, the Federal anti-kickback
statute and the Stark law), and on the supplier's compliance with all applicable
conditionsofparticipation in Medicare.

19. The “program instructions” referenced in the Medicare Enrollment Application

include Local Coverage Determinations and Medical Policy Articles issued by Medicare |

contractors.

20. National Government Services Inc. (“NGS”), the Medicare Part B carrier that

covers New York, published a Medical Policy Article relating to vascular surgery procedures for |

ESRD patients on March 1, 2012, which was in effect, with minor revisions, through December

31,2016. See National Government Services Inc., Medical Policy Article AS1630, Dialysis |

Access Maintenance (the "MPA)."

21. Fora provider to seck reimbursement for performing a fistulagram, angioplasty or

related services on an ESRD patient, the MPA stated that the patient should have previously. |

undergone a clinical examination that produced diagnostically specific and appropriate clinical |

findings demonstrating a need for therapies to re-cstablish physiologically appropriate flow in |

the dialysis fistula, and that such findings be documented in patients” medical records. |
|

- |
* From June 1, 2010, until March 1, 2012, NGS had in place a Local Coverage |

Determination, effective in New York, regarding vascular surgery procedures for ESRD patients. |
See National Government Services, Inc., Local Coverage Determination L30737, Dialysis Access |
Maintenance (the “LCD"). The LCD contained nearly identical coverage rules and principles as |
the later MPA regarding the use of fstulagrams and angioplasties for dialysis access in ESRD |
patients.
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22. The MPA further provided that “[t]ypically, the clinical examination provides

‘adequate information to determine whether there is hemodynamically significant dialysis shunt |

dysfunction.” It then listed clinical findings that “are considered diagnostically specific and |

‘appropriate indications to initiate therapies to re-establish physiologically appropriate flow in the |

dialysis fistula.” These included “elevated venous pressure in the AV dialysis access,” |

“prolonged bleeding following needle removal,” or “abnormal physical findings, specifically

pulsatile gratfistula or loss oftil, meaning blood vessels that upon manual or aural (using a
Stethoscope) examination suggest abnormal blood flow

23. The “Limitations” sectionof the MPA reiterated that “Medicare does not pay for |

services that are screening in natureorthat are not providing clinically relevant information.”

24. With respect to angioplasties, the “Limitations” section noted that, even in the

presenceof qualifying symptoms, such procedures are “not necessary for all poorly functioning |

AV dialysis accesses.” Even in the presenceofclinical findings demonstrating a need for |

therapy generally, the MPA explained that angioplasties are considered “reasonable and |

necessary” only “ifthere is documentation supporting the presenceofresidual, hemodynamically

significant stenosis, generally >/50 percentofthe vessel diameter.” Tt further provided that |

“[tJhere must be clear documentationofthe site and extentofany hemodynamically significant

stenosis.” It reiterated that “{aJngioplastyof vessels not documented o be stenosed significantly
by angiography or ultrasound will be considered not medically necessary.”

B. ‘The False Claims Act

25. The False Claims Act reflects Congress's objective to “enhance the Government's |

ability to recover losses as a result offraud against the Government.” S. Rep. No. 99-345, at 1 |

|
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(1986), reprinted in 1986 U.S.C.CAN. 5266. As relevant here, the FCA establishes civil

penalties and treble damages lability to the United States for an individual or entity that: |

(A) knowingly presents, or causes to be presented, a false or fraudulent claim for {
payment or approval; [or] |

(B) knowingly makes, uses, or causestobe made or used, a false record or |
statement material to a fase or fraudulent claim.

31 USC. § 3729)(1A)(B).

26. “Knowing,” within the meaning of the FCA, is defined to include reckless

disregard and deliberate indifference to the truth or falsity of the information. 1d. § 3729(b)(1) |

27. Submitting a reimbursement request to Medicare for medical procedures that do |

not comply with applicable coverage standards constitutes a false claim actionable under section

3729(a)(1)(A)ofthe False Claims Act. Creating medical records for medical procedures that |

make it appear that they comply with coverage standards and form the basis ofa reimbursement |

request to Medicare constitutes the creationoffalse record or statement material toa false claim

actionable under section 3729(a)(1)(B)of the False Claims Act. |

28. Under the Act, the Government is entitledto recover three times the amount of |

each claim and, for cach claim or overpayment, a civil penaltyofnot less than $5,500 and not |

more than $11,000 for each violation that occurred prior to November 2, 2015, and a civil |

penalty ofnot less than $10,781 and not more than $21,563 for each violation that occurred from |

November 3, 2015, until December 31, 2016. |

IL The Government's Prior FCA Lawsuit Against Dr. Qin’s and Settlement |

29. On March 23, 2012, relator Integrity Advocates LLC, fled a sealed gui tam |

lawsuit in this Court against, inter alia, Dr. Qin and his former employer, Mattoo& Bhat |

Medical Associates, P.C. (‘MBPC”), which operated surgical practices in New York City known |

as AV Care. See United States ef al. ex rel Tntegrity Advocates LLC v. Comprehensive
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Anesthesia Specialists, PC. etal, No. 12 Civ. 2327 (LTS). The relator aged that Dr. Qin and

MBEC violated the False Claims Act by performing surgical procedures on ESRD patients for |

screening purposes and on patients who did not have the required clinical findings for the

procedures.

30. On April 30, 2015, the United States intervened in this action, and on the same

day filed a complaint-in-intervention. The United States’ complaint-in-intervention alleged that

from April 2010 to April 2012, MBPC and Dr. Qin violated the False Claims Act by performing

and billing Medicare for fistulagrams and angioplasties without having the required clinical

findings to support such billing and performed routine fistulagrams forsercening purposes.
|

31. This Court unsealed this action by order dated May 1, 2015 |

32. Also on May 1, 2015, this Court so-ordered a Stipulation and Order of Settlement |

and Dismissal between the United States and Dr. Qin, which was docketed on May 4, 2015. In |

this stipulation, Dr. Qin agreed to pay the United States $150,000 to resolve his individual |

liability under the False Claims Act. |

33. Furthermore,aspartofthis stipulation, Dr. Qin admitted that the LCD, which was |

in effect during the relevant time period, contained limitations and rules requiring specific |

clinical findings to justify billing for fistulagrams and angioplasties for ESRD patients, and that: |

As a regular practice, AV Care routinely scheduled patients for istulagrams and |
angioplasties as many as three months in advance, and [Dr. Qin] performed these |
fistualgrams as a matterof routine evenifthe patient presented withouta clinical |
reason for the fistulagram, such as indicationsofdifficulty with dialysis. From
time to time, Dr. Qin performed angioplasties on MBPC patients where the
patient information and records did not support “the presenceof residual,
hemodynamically significant stenosis, generally >/50 percentof the vessel
diameter.”
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HL Dr. Qin Performed Medical Procedures on ESRD Patients that Were Not
Reasonable and Necessary and Billed Medicare for Those Procedures |
34. OnMay 25,2011 (and as updated on several subsequent occasions), Dr. Qin |

completed a Medicare Enrollment Application forhimselfand Qin Medical.

35. From at least January 1, 2015, to at least December 31, 2016, most Qin Medical |

patients were individuals with ESRD, enrolled in Medicare, who regularly required and received

dialysis. These patients required well-functioning vascular access in order to receive dialysis.

36. Dr. Qin performed fistulagrams, angioplasties, and other procedures on ESRD)

patients at Qin Medical, |

37. The Qin Defendants regularly scheduled ESRD patients for follow-up office visits |

approximately every three months before it was known whether,a th fimofthose future visits,

the patients would exhibit clinical symptoms that would suggest any problems withthe blood |

flow in and through the blood vessels through which dialysis treatment was provided

38. During these follow up visits and otherwise, te Qin Defendants regularly |

performed, and billed Medicare for, fistulagrams, angioplastis, and related procedures on ESRD

patients as a prophylactic or screening measure, even though the patients presented without any |

documented evidence that they exhibited a need for therapies to re-establish physiologically |

appropriate blood flow in the relevant blood vessels, such as indicationsof difficulty with |

dialysis. |

39. In many cases, the medical records from Qin Medical falsely suggested tht ts |

patients had symptomsofthe type that would justifya referral from the dialysis center for |

{reatmentor thatthe patient's dialysis center had refered the patient fo Qin Medical. Indeed, |

medical records from the dialysis centers showed that the patients had no relevant symptoms and

that there were no referrals to Dr. Qinor any other physician. The Qin Medical records
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describing the justification for the procedures regularly included language that was similar or

identical to that used in those patients” previous visits. |

40. Furthermore, during patient visits (including the improperly scheduled follow-up

visits), the Qin Defendants regularly performed, and billed Medicare for, angioplasties where the |

patient information and records did not support “the presenceofresidual, hemodynamically |

significant stenosis.”

41. Qin Medical billed Medicare for eachofthese procedures and was paid for them, |

though they were not for covered procedures. |

42. For example, patient CH who has ESRD and was scen by Dr. Qin at Qin Medical |

several times in 2015 and 2016, recived fistulagrams and angioplastes during these visits |

without having displayed the clinical symptoms to justify such interventions; he was nevertheless.

‘scheduled for a returnvisitsthree months after each visit. Incach of these visits, Dr. Qin |

performed angioplasties on CH's blood vessels despite the fact that imaging did not support the |

presenceofresidual, hemodynamically significant stenosis.

43. On March 31,2015, CH was seen by Dr. Qin, who stated that his office had

supposedly been “called from HD [hemodialysis] center for very high venous pressure and |

prolonged bleeding,” and stated that the patient allegedly had “moderate arm edema’ or |

swelling. Dr. Qin performed a fistulagram that allegedly showed “over 50% stenosis at LT [left]

subclavian [vein] and multiple over 50% stenosis over [the] cephalic [vein] [in the] upper(jarm.” |

CH then underwent angioplasties in those two veins. Dr. Qin’s “follow-up” instructions for CH |
|
|
|

For reasons ofmedical privacy, only the initialsofpatients seen at Qin Medical are used
inthis complaint,
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stated that he should receive an “appointment reminder (3 months)” for an “office visit and

possible fistulagram.” |

44. However, at previous visits to the dialysis center on March 25, 27, and 30, 2015,

‘CHS venous pressure was measured within the normal range, and the center noted that his fistula

was accessed without difficulty, and that the treatment was successfully completed. There was

no indicationof any issue or symptom that would have warranted a referral to a vascular

surgeon, nor was there any noteofsuch a referral. There was no change to CH’s condition as

described in the dialysis center's notes on April 1, 2015, the day after he saw Dr. Qin |

45. Moreover, a reviewofthe imagesofCH’ treatment at Qin Medical on March 31, |

2015, showed no significant narrowing in the veins Dr. Qin treated.

46. CH was seen again at Qin Medical on June 30, 2015. This time Dr. Qin’s notes

stated that his office had supposedly been “called from HD center for recurrent arm swellingand

‘pain during HD for few weeks,” and again noted “moderate arm edema.” Dr. Qin performed a |

fistulagram that allegedly showed “over 50% stenosis at LT innominate [vein] and multiple over |

50% stenosis and kink over cephalic upper{Jarm,” and then performed angioplasties on those

veins. Dr. Qin again prescribeda “follow-up” “appointment reminder (3 months)” for an “office |

visit and possible fistulagram.”

47. Just as with the previous visit, CH's prior and subsequent visits to the dialysis |

center showed no evidenceof any problems administering dialysis or any calls or referrals to Qin |

Medical. And again a reviewofthe images of CH’s treatment at Qin Medical on that date |

showed no significant narrowing in the veins Dr. Qin treated. |

48. CH was seen again at Qin Medical on September 29, 2015. Dr. Qin’s notes |

stated, just as they had three months prior, that his office had supposedly been “called from HD |
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center for recurrent arm swelling and pain during HID for few weeks,” and again noted “moderate

arm edema.” Dr. Qin allegedly identified “[Jmultiple over 509% stenoses” in unspecified veins |

anda “kink over [the] cephalic upper{Jarm” by fistulagram, and proceeded to perform |

angioplasty there. He again scheduleda three-month appointment reminder. |

49. Like for CH's previous visitstoQin Medical, the dialysis center notes from both |

before and aftr this visit show no issues or symptoms that would warrant a referral to vascular

surgeon and no indication that referral or cll was made. Similarly, the images from this

treatment show no significant narmowingofth vein treated.

50. “This process repeated itself, with litle variation, for CH's subsequent |

appointments with Dr. Qin on December §, 2015, and March 8, 2016

51. Asanother example, on January 7, 2015, patient SL was seen by Dr. Qin witha |

reportedchief complaint of “recurrent arm swelling and prolonged bleeding,” who noted on

physical examination to that the patient supposedly had “moderate arm edema’ or swelling. Dr.

Qin performed a fstulagram that allegedly showed “over 50% focal stenosis at [the] cephalic

arch,” and then performed an angioplasty on that vein. Dr. Qin's operation notes indicate that

the patients “high venous pressure was resolved,” even though high venous pressure was not

among the symptoms described for this patient. Fora “follow-up,” Dr. Qin gave SL an |

“appointment reminder (3 months)" for an “office visit and possible fistlagram.” |

52. However, at previous visits tothe dialysis center on December 31, 2014, January |

3,2015, and January 6, 2015, as well as ata post-treatment visit on January 8, 2015, patent SL

is described as “edema free,” and having a “normal” “access assessment.” While SL's venous

pressure during these visits was somewhat higher than what i generally considered normal, this

condition persisted for months before and afer treatment and did not appear to be affected by the |
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treatment by Dr. Qin. A reviewofthe images of Dr. Qin's treatment did not show any

significant narrowing of the treated vein. |

53. SL retumed to Qin Medical on April 8, 2015, and Dr. Qin’s medical notes |

indicate that his office was allegedly “called from HID center for recurrent arm swelling and

prolonged bleeding during HD recently,” and again noted a pulsatile fistula and moderate arm |

edema. Dr. Qin again performed a fistulagram, which allegedly showed “multiple over 50% in-

stent stenosis at cephalic upper[Jarm,” followed by an angioplasty, and recommended a three-

month follow-up appointment. |

54. Records from SLs visits to a dialysis center both before and after this visit to Qin

Medical again show no edema or problems with acess, no changeto the patient's venous

pressure, and no indicationofany call or referral to an outside provider. And reviewofthe

images associated with Dr. Qin’s treatment did not show any significant narrowingof the treated |

- |
55. SL next saw Dr. Qinon July 16, 2015, whose notes included an indication for |

treatment, including the alleged “call[J” from the dialysis center, in identical language as the |

previous visit. Dr. Qin performed a fistulagram and angioplasty on the same areas as before, |

describing them in the same language, and recommended a three-month return visit.

56. Again, the contemporaneous records from SLs visits to the dialysis center do not

show any difficulty or referral to an outside provider, and the images from Dr. Qin’s treatment

do not show significant narrowingof the treated vein.

57. Similar visitsof SL to Qin Medical, with minor differences, took place on

October 15, 2015, January 14, 2016, April 14, 2016, and July 14, 2016. Significantly, afier a |

dialysis treatment on March 17, 2016, the dialysis center did note it had made a “referral for |
|
|
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consultation or admission” afte the patient's blood pressure dropped during dialysis, but there is

no indication to which provider SL was referred; SL was not seen at Qin Medical until several

weeks later, the notes from which made no mentionofthis incident. |

58. In total, Qin Medical had more than1,100patient encounters in 2015 and 2016 in

‘which he performed fistulagrams and/or angioplasties on ESRD patients. Dr. Qin’s practice

billed Medicare, and Medicare paid, millionsofdollars for fistulagrams and angioplasties in

2015 and 2016. |

59. Medicare would not have paid Dr. Qin for any such procedures, such as those |

described above, which were not reasonable and necessary. |

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT ONE
(Violationof31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(A)) |

60. The Government incorporates by reference all paragraphsofthis complaint set |

out above asif fully set forth herein. |

61. The Qin Defendants submitted claims to Medicareforreimbursementofservices |

that were not “reasonable and necessary” and did not comply with program instructions because: |

theywere screening in nature and were given to patients who did not demonstrate symptoms

showing clinical need for such services.

62. By submitting such claims for reimbursement, the Qin Defendants presented, or

caused to be presented, false or fraudulent claims for payment or approval to the United States.

63. Such acts were made or done knowingly, as defined in 31 U.S.C. § 3729(@)(1). |

64. By reasonof the Qin Defendants’ above conduct, they are liable to the United |

States for treble damages and penalties, in an amount to be determined at trial. 1
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COUNTTWO
(Violationof31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1)(B))

65. The Government incorporates by reference all paragraphsof this complaint set

out above as if fully set forth herein. |

66. The Qin Defendants submitted claims to Medicare for reimbursementof services |

that were not “reasonable and necessary” and did not comply with program instructions because

they were screening in nature and were given to patients who did not demonstrate symptoms

showing clinical need for such services. |
|

67. By submitting such claims for reimbursement, the Qin Defendants made, used, or |

caused to be made or used, false records or statements material to false or fraudulent claims |

submitted to the United States |

68. Such acts were made or done knowingly, as defined in 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1). |

69. By reason of the Qin Defendants” above conduct, they are liable to the United

States for treble damages and penaltics, in an amount to be determined at trial. |

WHEREFORE, the United States requests that judgment be entered in its favor and

against the Qin Defendants as follows

(@) treble the United States’ damages, in an amount tobe determined a trial, |
plus an $11,000 penalty for each claim submitted in violationof31 U.S.C.
§3729(a)(1)(A) for each violation that occurred prior to November 2,
2015, and a $21,563 penalty for each violation that occurred between
November 3, 2015, and December 31, 2016;

(©) troble the United States’ damages, in an amount to be determined at tral, |
plus an $11,000 penalty for each claim submitted in violation of 31 U.S.C.
§3729(a)(1)(B) for each violation that occurred prior to November 2,
2015, and a $21,563 penalty for each violation that occurred between
November 3, 2015, and December 31, 2016;

(@ an awardofcosts pursuantto 31 U.S.C. § 3729(@)(3); and |
|
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(© such furthorreliofas is proper.

Dated: November 30, 2018 GEOFFREY S. BERMAN |
New York, New York United States Attorney for the

Soufhor istic of New York

Br 3 7a ~~
TERN DAVIE BARNEA
‘Assistant United States Attorney
Attorney for the United States
United States Attorney's Office
86 Chambars Street, 3rd Floor
New York, NY 10007 |
Tel: (212) 637-2679 |
Fax: (212) 637-2686 |
Email: Jean-David. Bamea@usdoj.gov |

|

|
||
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